
 
 

 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle, Merseyside L30 4YD Fax: 0151 296 4144 
Legal Services 0151 296 4122, Democratic Services: 0151 296 4112 

 

 

To: All Members of the Authority 
 
 

J. Henshaw 
LLB (Hons) 
Clerk to the Authority 
 
 
Tel: 0151 296 4000 

Extn: 4112 Helen Peek 

  
  
 
Your ref:  Our ref   HP/NP Date: 24 July 2014 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 

 
You are invited to attend an Additional meeting of the AUTHORITY to be held at 

1.00 pm on FRIDAY, 1ST AUGUST, 2014 in the Temporary Meeting Room, first 

floor, at Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle. 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Clerk to the Authority 

 
 
Encl. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 
 



 

3 

MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

AUTHORITY 
 

1 AUGUST 2014 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Preliminary Matters  

 The Authority is requested to consider the identification of: 
 

a) declarations of interest by individual Members in relation to any item 
of business on the Agenda 

 
b) any additional items of business which the Chair has determined 

should be considered as matters of urgency; and 
 

c) items of business which may require the exclusion of the press and 
public during consideration thereof because of the possibility of the 
disclosure of exempt information. 

 
 
 

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

 The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Authority, held on 24th July 
2014, are submitted for approval as a correct record and for signature by 
the Chair. 
 
 

3. Industrial Action Cover Arrangements (Pages 5 - 18) 

 To consider Report CFO/086/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning the 
estimated financial and health, safety and welfare impact of the 
forthcoming episodes of industrial action announced by the Fire Brigades 
Union (FBU) in the ongoing national dispute over pensions and of the 
options open to the Authority in relation to operational cover arrangements.  
 
 

 
 

----------------------------------- 
If any Members have queries, comments or require additional information relating to any 

item on the agenda please contact Committee Services and we will endeavour to provide the 

information you require for the meeting. Of course this does not affect the right of any 

Member to raise questions in the meeting itself but it may assist Members in their 

consideration of an item if additional information is available. 

 
Refreshments 

 



 

4 

Any Members attending on Authority business straight from work or for long periods of time, 

and require a sandwich, please contact Democratic Services, prior to your arrival, for 

arrangements to be made. 

 



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

24 JULY 2014 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: Cllr Dave Hanratty (Chair) Councillors Les Byrom, 

Linda Maloney, Peter Brennan, Ted Grannell, John Kelly, 
Barbara Murray, Steve Niblock, Lesley Rennie, 
Denise Roberts, James Roberts, Tony Robertson, 
Jean Stapleton and Sharon Sullivan 

  
Also Present:     
  
 Apologies of absence were received from: Cllr 

Robbie Ayres, Cllr Roy Gladden, Cllr Jimmy Mahon and Cllr 
Tony Newman  

8. Attendance note  
 
It was requested that Cllr Gladdens apologies for absence, due to representing 
the Authority at the North West Employers Annual meeting, be noted. 
 
Cllr Niblock arrived during discussion of item 5. 
 

1. Preliminary Matters  
 
The Authority considered the identification of any declarations of interest, 
matters of urgency or items that would require the exclusion of the press and 
public due to the disclosure of exempt information.  
 
Resolved that: 
 

a) no declarations of interest were made by individual Members in relation 
to any item of business on the Agenda  

 
b) Item 7. Industrial Action Impact and Cover Arrangements report 
CFO/084/14, be determined by the Chair to be considered as a matter of 
urgency, to update Members of the current impact on the Authority 
following recent periods of National Industrial Action.  

 
c)  Item 3 Part Two Exempt Minutes of the last meeting, 26th June 2014, 
containing exempt information by virtue of paragraphs 1,2 & 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972; and,   

 
Item 6 JCC Update Report CFO/080/14 containing exempt information be 
virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972, required the exclusion of the press and public during 
consideration thereof because of the possibility of the disclosure of 
exempt information.  
 

 Item 3 and 6 be considered after item 7. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
Members considered the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 26th 
June 2014. 
Item 12 Appointments to Outside Organisations, Page 10 Councillor Lesley 
Rennie requested confirmation that she has now been appointed to the North 
West Fire and Rescue Forum. 
 
Resolved that: 

 
a) The Minutes be amended to include the appointment of Councillor 

Lesley Rennie to the North West Fire and Rescue Forum. 
 

b) With the inclusion of the above amendment, The Minutes of the 
previous meeting of the Authority, held on 26th June 2014, be 
approved as a correct record and signed accordingly by the Chair. 

 
 

4. Revenue & Capital Outturn 2013/14  
 
Members considered report CFO/079/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
regarding the Authority’s year-end financial position for 2013/14. 
 
Resolved that: 

 
a) The actual financial performance against the approved budget and the 

achievement of a net revenue saving in 2013/14 of £1.352million be 
noted; and  

 
b) The proposal to utilise the one-off saving of £1.352m to fund an increase 

in the Capital Investment Reserve in light of the planned station merger 
and investment strategy be approved. 

 
 

5. Equality and Diversity Annual Report 2013/14  
 
Members considered Report CFO/081/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer 
regarding an update on the progress made, to date, against the Equality and 
Diversity Action Plan 2013/16  
 
Members welcomed the report and expressed their appreciation to Wendy 
Kenyon Equality and Diversity Manager, and all Staff working for the Authority, 
and youth engagement teams, for their dedication to Equality and Diversity.  
 
Praise was extended to all individuals who have been involved in youth 
engagement programmes, for the difference such courses as Princes Trust and 
Beacon courses has made to young people’s lives. 
 
Suggestions were also made by Members, for Officers to: 

• work closely with other organisations to increase safety and 
awareness for cyclists, 

Page 2



 

• consider the Authority applying to become an Alzheimer’s Friendly 
Authority, 

 

• check alternative language formats of the document to ensure 
correct before publishing 
 

Resolved that: 
 

With final language checks made, and professional design work 
completed, the Equality and Diversity Annual Report be published. 

 
 

7. Industrial Action Impact And Cover Arrangements  

(CFO/084/14) 
 
Members considered Report CFO/084/14 of the Chief Fire Officer relating to the 
financial impact of the most recent episode of industrial action by the Fire 
Brigades Union, in support of the ongoing national dispute over pensions,  
 
Resolved that: 
 

a) The report be noted and; 
 

b) An additional urgent meeting of the Authority be called following the 
announcement of any further episodes of Industrial Action, to consider 
any changes in relation to operational cover arrangements during 
industrial action and whether the Authority would continue to accept part 
performance .   

  
 

3. EXEMPT Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
Containing exempt information by virtue of paragraphs 1, 2 & 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 
 
Members considered Part 2 Exempt Minutes of the last meeting held on 26th 
June 2014  
 
Resolved that: 
 

Part 2 Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting of The Authority, held on 
26th June 2014, be approved as a correct record and signed accordingly 
by the Chair. 

 
 

6. JCC Update  
 
This report contains exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3, of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 

Page 3



 
Member considered Report CFO/080/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
providing an update in relation to the works on the Joint Command and Control 
Centre (JCC). 
 
Resolved that: 
 

The contents of the report be noted. 
 
 
 
Close 
 
Date of next meeting Friday, 1 August 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:_____________________   Date:______________ 
 

Page 4



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

MEETING OF THE: FULL AUTHORITY 

DATE: 1ST AUGUST 2014 REPORT NO: CFO/086/14 

PRESENTING 
OFFICER 

CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

CFO STEPHENS REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

CFO STEPHENS 

OFFICERS 
CONSULTED: 

KIERAN TIMMINS 
DCFO GARRIGAN 

TITLE OF REPORT: INDUSTRIAL ACTION COVER ARRANGEMENTS  

 

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A CFO/084/14 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

1. To advise Members of the estimated financial and health, safety and welfare impact of 
the forthcoming episodes of industrial action announced by the Fire Brigades Union 
(FBU) in the ongoing national dispute over pensions and of the options open to the 
Authority in relation to operational cover arrangements.   

 

Recommendation 

 

2. That Members decide which of the operational cover arrangements they wish the Chief 
Fire Officer (CFO) to adopt during the forthcoming episodes of industrial action.  

 

Introduction and Background 

 

3. Members will be aware of the ongoing national pension’s dispute between the FBU 
and Government which has seen 30 separate episodes of industrial action so far. The 
financial impact of the dispute was reported to the Authority at the meeting on 24th July 
within CFO/084/14 and attached at Appendix A. 

 
4. On 31st July the FBU announced a further 16 episodes of industrial action on the 

following dates and times;  
 
Saturday 9th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Sunday 10th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Monday 11th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Tuesday 12th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Wednesday 13th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Thursday 14th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Friday 15th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
Saturday 16th August 1200hrs – 1400hrs and 2259hrs – 2359hrs 
 

5. The timing and duration of the industrial action has again been set to cause maximum 
disruption to the Authority with minimum financial impact to the striking Firefighters. 

 

6. As reported in CFO/084/14 the Authority has three options to consider with regards to 
the provision of emergency response cover which are; 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



 
� Continue to deploy the maximum number of appliances possible based on the 

availability of resilience staff 
� Reduce the numbers of appliances available during each period of industrial action  
� Refuse to accept partial performance of a shift 

 
7. At the time of writing it has not yet been possible to determine the availability of 

resilience staff however a definitive position should be established by 4th August for all 
three options outlined above. The Authority has deployed an average of 20 appliances, 
1 primary crewed Combined Platform Ladder, 1 primary crewed Prime Mover, 4 full 
Urban Search and Rescue (USAR) teams (10 technicians per team, 2 canines and 
handler and Tactical Advisor) for national deployment, 1 High Volume Pump (HVP) 
and full Chemical, Biological, Radiological and Nuclear (CBRNE) capability during 
each industrial action period. This is set against a normal availability of between 24 
and 28 appliances.  

 
8. It is anticipated that the weekday day time episodes of industrial action (1200hrs – 

1400hrs) will be less problematic to cover than the weekend day time and all evening 
episodes of industrial action (2259hrs – 2359hrs). The weekday episodes of industrial 
action will however be very disruptive to the day to day Authority business for senior 
officers in functional role.  

 
9. From a health, safety and welfare perspective the timings of the evening episodes of 

industrial action (2259hrs – 2359hrs) give some cause for concern as resilience staff 
will not return home until sometime after midnight and may well be required in work 
later on that morning. This can be managed in some instances (depending on rostered 
duty) by allowing for a later start time.  

 
10. Given the health, safety and welfare implications the Authority might consider fielding 

less appliances during the evening periods of industrial action whilst seeking to field as 
many as staff availability allows during the day time episodes. There are however risks 
with this option which have been detailed previously within CFO/084/14.   

 
11. If the Authority elected not to accept part performance then resilience staff would 

provide cover from 0830hrs on Saturday 9th August through until 0830hrs Sunday 17th 
August. In these circumstances the resilience teams would operate to the industrial 
action continuous working risk assessment and self-roster to provide appliance 
availability across the full period of industrial action.  This would however result in staff 
taking industrial action losing a full weeks pay (42 hours) against the 6 hours pay they 
would lose if the Authority were to continue to accept part performance.    

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 

12. With regards to those staff providing resilience, the short period and short notice 
industrial action may have an impact on staff with caring responsibilities.  Whilst this 
may be considered more impactive on female staff members, the same impact will be 
felt by any staff member with caring responsibilities.  The provision of resilience is 
voluntary. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



13. In terms of those staff involved in IA, the impact will be proportionate to all members 
regardless of their protected characteristics.  There will be an obvious economic 
disadvantage to those members of staff involved in IA in terms of their pay. 

 
Staff Implications 

 
14. Staff implications have been covered in the main body of the report.  

 
 Legal Implications 

 
15. A period of strike action shorter than a complete shift amounts to partial performance 

and in such cases the Authority will need to decide whether or not it will accept the 
partial performance, as it is entitled to do. 

 
16. The Authority may decide for example to allow the striking employee to continue to 

work normally and be paid for the remainder of the affected shift. 
 
17. Alternatively it may decide that the employee will not be required, and therefore not 

paid for the remainder of the shift. If an Authority decides that employees will not be 
required to work the rest of the shift, the employees should be made fully aware in 
advance that any work that is undertaken during the remainder of the shift will be 
regarded as voluntary and not attract any pay. Such volunteers should not in any way 
be requested to carry out work during the unpaid period, unless pay for that period of 
time is to be reinstated. The Authority is not, however, required to send employees 
home or prevent them in some other way from performing any work if the employees 
insist on working the remainder of the shift and this makes such a situation different to 
a “lockout”. 

 

Financial Implications & Value for Money 
 

18. The estimated cost to the Authority of covering all periods of industrial fielding all 
available appliances is circa £85k.  
 

19. The estimated saving to the Authority of not accepting partial performance is circa 
£33k. 
 

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 
 

20. The timings of discontinuous industrial action are set such that there is at least an 11 
hour break between each period of action which therefore remains within the Working 
Time Regulations. As detailed in paragraph 9 however if resilience staff are rostered 
for duty at 0830hrs following on from providing cover during an evening episode of 
action they will not have an 11 hour break between work periods. Given the impact on 
appliance availability it may not be possible to allow resilience staff a later start time in 
these circumstances.  
 

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters 
 

21. The CFO will seek to manage appliance availability during any period of industrial 
action so as to minimise the impact on response times. 

 
 
 

Page 7



BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  

NONE 
 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
  

  
 

Page 8



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

MEETING OF THE: FULL AUTHORITY 

DATE: 24TH JULY 2014 REPORT NO: CFO/084/14 

PRESENTING 
OFFICER 

CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

CFO STEPHENS REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

CFO STEPHENS 

OFFICERS 
CONSULTED: 

DCFO GARRIGAN 
KIERAN TIMMINS 
JANET HENSHAW 
NICK MERNOCK 

TITLE OF REPORT: INDUSTRIAL ACTION IMPACT AND COVER ARRANGEMENTS  

 

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A 
 
APPENDIX B 
 
 

SHEDULE OF PERIODS OF STRIKE 
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 
LETTER TO STAFF DATED 28TH APRIL 
2014 ADVISING OF THE AUTHORITY 
POLICY ON PART PERFORMANCE 
 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

1. To advise Members of the financial impact of the most recent episode of industrial action 
by the Fire Brigades Union (FBU) in the ongoing national dispute over pensions. 

  

2. To allow members to consider their options in relation to operational cover arrangements 
in relation to future episodes of industrial action.   

 

Recommendation 

 

3. That Members note the contents of this report and consider any changes to current 
approaches they might wish to make if there is any further episodes of Industrial action.  

 

Introduction and Background 

 

4. Members will be aware of the ongoing national dispute between the FBU and 
Government over pension reform which has seen 30 separate episodes of industrial 
action so far.  
 

5. There has been considerable variation in the pattern and duration of the industrial 
action. A full schedule of the industrial action undertaken in relation to this dispute is 
attached at Appendix A. 
 

6. The operational response cover during the periods of industrial action, which the 
Authority has a statutory duty to maintain, has been provided by a relatively high 
number of staff who have agreed to provide resilience. This includes the majority of 
Middle Managers. These staff are fully trained wholetime firefighters which contrasts 
with resilience arrangements in other Authorities, many of whom rely upon one or 
more of the following:- 
 

a. Community retained firefighters 

Page 9



b. The private sector 
c. Staff specifically recruited for the duration of the industrial dispute with limited 

training and experience 
 
7. The financial impact of the industrial action is summarised as follows:- 

 
� Pay is deducted from staff for the period of strike action**. (The deduction means 

that the Authority does not have to pay national insurance or pension 
contributions for those periods).  

� Historically the Authority has paid firefighters who provide resilience a one off 
annual payment and time and a half for all hours over and above their contractual 
requirement for 42 hours (non pensionable). A new resilience contract has been 
negotiated with the Fire Officers Association effective from 1st April 2014 whereby 
all hours worked are paid at flat rate.    

� To account for travel time and in order to manage the changeover effectively 
resilience staff are required to work for an hour before and after each period of 
industrial action  
 

** To date the Authority has accepted part performance. This means that if a firefighter is on 
strike for a two hour period of a shift the Authority has accepted part performance of the shift 
and has only deducted two hours pay. 
 
8. The net cost/saving from any period of industrial action is therefore directly affected 

by:- 
� The duration of the industrial action – shorter periods of action are more costly 

for example because pay deductions have (so far) been only for the strike 
period whilst resilience payments are for the strike period plus 2 hours 

� The timing of the industrial action and when it takes place during the 42 hours 
‘core work’ for resilience staff 
 

9. The 15 most recent periods of industrial action took place over 8 consecutive days and 
covered the following dates and times;  
 
Monday 14th July:  0600hrs – 0800hrs and 1700hrs – 1900hrs 
Tuesday 15th July:  0600hrs – 0800hrs and 1700hrs – 1900hrs 
Wednesday 16th July:  0600hrs – 0800hrs and 1700hrs – 1900hrs 
Thursday 17th July:  0600hrs – 0800hrs and 1700hrs – 1900hrs 
Friday 18th July:          0600hrs – 0800hrs and 2300hrs – 0100hrs on Saturday 19th July 
Saturday 19th July:      1100hrs – 1300hrs and 2300hrs – 0100hrs on Sunday 20th July 
Sunday 20th July:  1700hrs – 1900hrs 
Monday 21st July:  0600hrs – 0800hrs and 1700hrs – 1900hrs 

 
10. It is considered that the timing and duration of the industrial action were set to cause 

maximum disruption and cost to Authorities for providing resilience, whilst having a 
relatively minimal financial impact to the striking Firefighters. 

 

11. On all periods of industrial action including the fifteen periods above the Chief Fire 
Officer (CFO) has sought to deploy as many appliances as possible whilst respecting 
any pre-arranged commitments that resilience staff may have i.e. holidays, family 
events etc. As a result the Authority has fielded on average 20 appliances, 1 primary 
crewed Combined Platform Ladder, 1 primary crewed Prime Mover, 1 full Urban 
Search and Rescue (USAR) team (10 technicians, 2 canines and handler and Tactical 
Advisor), 1 High Volume Pump (HVP) and full Chemical, Biological, Radiological and 
Nuclear (CBRNE) capability during each industrial action period. Set against a normal 

Page 10



availability of between 24 and 28 appliances this is arguably the strongest resilience 
arrangement in the Country and minimises any reduction in service to the community.   

 
12. It is estimated that the net cost of the industrial action across the most recent 8 day 

period was £83k.  
 

13. If the Authority had chosen not to accept part-performance, (i.e. advised firefighters 
they would not be paid for any part of a shift affected by industrial action) and had it 
provided its established resilience arrangements continuously across the eight day 
period the estimated financial impact would have been a net saving of £38k. Accepting 
part performance for just this 8 day period of (in total) 30 hours industrial action has 
been more costly to the Authority/public purse by £121k. 
 

14. Given the lack of progress in negotiations between the FBU and Government it is 
reasonable to assume that further periods of industrial action will follow. If any future 
industrial action continues to follow the same form of the most recent period of 
industrial action and the Authority continues to accept part-performance then the costs 
to the Authority will be substantial.   

 
15. Should the Authority take the view that further levels of expenditure of this nature are 

unreasonable given the impact on reserves there are two options to consider. 
 
Reduce the numbers of appliances available during each period of industrial action  
 
16. The Authority operational response methodology is predicated on having a minimum of 

1 appliance available in each of the 10 key station areas. In theory therefore the CFO 
could deploy 10 appliances (1 appliance available in each of the 10 key station areas) 
throughout any period of industrial action. In these circumstance the Authority would 
however need to abandon its 10 minute response standard and its undertaking in the 
IRMP to the public of Merseyside and accept that the Service would attend incidents 
as fast as was practicable given the reduced number of pumps deployed due to cost 

and impact on resilience staff.   

 
17. In order to build in resilience the CFO could deploy additional appliances up to the 

maximum available numbers dependant on resilience staff availability but there would 
be a proportionate increase in cost for each additional appliance staffed.  
 

18. However many appliances are staffed this model still is disruptive to resilience staff 
when travel times to and from the station at which they are providing resilience are 
taken in to account and is also disruptive to normal service delivery if they are covering 
directly before, after or in between a rostered duty.    
 

19. Of particular relevance, Members will note that the resilience arrangements at present 
are very close to ‘business as usual’ and there is minimal impact on the service the 
Authority provides to its council tax payers. If it chose to reduce the number of 
resilience appliances response times are very likely to increase. In these circumstance 
the Authority would need to consider reputational risks and potential challenges if 
damage or loss were caused by an incident if the levels of cover provided were 
consciously being reduced.  
 

20. It might also be considered that there is some risk that if the Authority were successful 
in providing fire cover with a much reduced number of appliances that this may inform 
resource allocation decisions by any future Government funding mechanism.  
 

Page 11



21. The net cost of providing cover in this way if the Authority had chosen to do so for the 
last 15 strike period is estimated at £11k. This is clearly cheaper than the cost of 
providing a near normal service (£83k) but is still more costly than not accepting part 
performance. 

 
Refusal to accept partial performance of a shift 
 
22. The Authority is not obliged to accept partial performance of a shift and has already 

written to staff to advise them of the position in this regard (see Appendix B). 
 

23. If the Authority had elected not to accept part performance during the most recent 
period of industrial action then the resilience arrangements would have taken effect 
between 2030hrs Sunday 13th July and 2030hrs Monday 21st July (total of 9 full days).  
 

24. In these circumstances the resilience teams would align to the existing Low Level of 
Activity and Risk (LLAR) duty system whereby they would work 12 positive hours 
during the day and then revert to retained status albeit on an immediate response from 
the station at night.  

 
25. This model is much less disruptive to resilience staff in so much as they remain on 

station for in this instance a period of 9 days with the facility to roster off if necessary 
(each station is allocated 5 riders in order to provide a minimum of 4 riders on the 
appliance at all times). It is also less disruptive organisationally as resilience personnel 
with corporate references can still undertake some corporate work whilst on resilience 
duty. There is however a significant financial impact on staff undertaking industrial 
action as they would lose 42 hours pay during each 8 day period.     
 

26. If this approach had been adopted there would have been a net saving to the Authority 
estimated as £37k which is £121k cheaper than the way in which cover was provided.   

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 

27. With regards to those staff providing resilience, the short period and short notice 
industrial action may have an impact on staff with caring responsibilities. Whilst this 
may be considered more impactive on female staff members the same impact will be 
felt by any staff member with caring responsibilities. The provision of resilience is 
voluntary. 
 

28. In terms of those staff involved in IA, the impact will be proportionate to all members 
regardless of their protected characteristics. There will be an obvious economic 
disadvantage to those members of staff involved in IA in terms of their pay.  

 

Staff Implications 

 

29. The staff implications are contained within the main body of the report.  

 

 Legal Implications 

 

30.  A period of strike action shorter than a complete shift amounts to partial performance 
and in such cases the Authority will need to decide whether or not it will accept the 
partial performance, as it is entitled to do. 
 

31. The Authority may decide for example to allow the striking employee to continue to 
work normally and be paid for the remainder of the affected shift. 

Page 12



 
32. Alternatively it may decide that the employee will not be required, and therefore not 

paid for the remainder of the shift. If an Authority decides that employees will not be 
required to work the rest of the shift, the employees should be made fully aware in 
advance that any work that is undertaken during the remainder of the shift will be 
regarded as voluntary and not attract any pay. Such volunteers should not in any way 
be requested to carry out work during the unpaid period, unless pay for that period of 
time is to be reinstated. The Authority is not, however, required to send employees 
home or prevent them in some other way from performing any work if the employees 
insist on working the remainder of the shift and this makes such a situation different to 
a “lockout” 

 

Financial Implications & Value for Money 
 

33. In overall terms there has been a net cost to the Authority through the provision       of 
resilience (prior to the most recent 15 periods) of £40k.The net cost of any industrial 
action is very much affected by the timing and duration of that industrial action and the 
Authority’s decision whether or not to accept partial performance. 

 
34. The most recent 15 episodes of industrial action appear to have been timed to 

maximise the impact and cost for Authorities when providing fire cover in line with their 
statutory responsibilities. 

 
35. The table below summarises the position for the most recent periods of action and the 

relative costs of alternative courses of action:- 

 
Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 

 
36. The Authority has to consider the health, safety and welfare implications for resilience 

staff and whether or not they would accept part performance in these circumstances. 
37. Risk assessments have been undertaken on continuous working for resilience staff 

which would be required if the authority elected not to accept part performance.   
 

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters 
 

38. The CFO will seek to manage appliance availability during any period of industrial 
action so as to minimise the impact on response times. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

  
NONE  

Page 13



 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

  

  

 

Page 14



APPENDIX      – FULL LIST OF INDUSTRIAL ACTION (IA) PERIOD DURING CURRENT DISPUTE 

 

 

 Date Times Length of IA 

Hrs 

 Notes 

P1 25/9/13 1200-1600 4  

P2 19/10/14 1830-2330 5 Postponed by FBU 

P3 1/11/13 1830-2300 4.5  

P4 4/11/13 0600-0800 2  

P5 13/11/13 1000-1400 4  

P6 13/12/13 1800-2200 4  

P7 14/12/13 1800-2200 4  

P8 24/12/13 1900-0000 5  

P9 31/12/13 1830-0030 6  

P10 3/1/14 0630-0830 2  

P11 2/5/14 1200-1700 5  

P12 3/5/14 1400-0200 12  

P13 4/5/14 1000-1500 7  

P14 12/6/14 0900-0900 24  

P15 21/6/14 1000-1700 7  

P16 10/7/14 1000-1900 9  

P17 14/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P18 14/7/14 1700-1900 2  

P19 15/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P20 15/7/14 1700-1900 2  

P21 16/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P22 16/7/14 1700-1900 2  

P23 17/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P24 17/7/14 1700-1900 2  

P25 18/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P26 18/7/14 2300-0100 2  

P27 19/7/14 1100-1300 2  

P28 19/7/14 2300-0100 2  

P29 20/7/14 1700-1900 2  

P30 21/7/14 0600-0800 2  

P31 21/7/14 1700-1900 2  

     

 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

  

  

 
 
 

Janet Henshaw 
Clerk to the Authority 
Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters 
Bridle Road 
Bootle 
Merseyside 
L30 4YD 
 
Telephone: 0151 296 4000 
(Your call may be recorded) 
 
Direct Line: 0151 296 4301 
 
Email: janethenshaw@merseyfire.gov.uk 

 Web Site: www.merseyfire.gov.uk 
 
 
Your ref: 101606 Our ref: JH/HR/JP/PD2665 Date:  28th April 14 
 
Dear  
 
National Industrial Action 
  
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority has now been formally notified by the 
Fire Brigade Union (FBU) of further periods of industrial action in respect of 
the on-going dispute with Central Government regarding reform of the Fire 
Fighters pension scheme on the following dates and times; 
  
 2nd May 2014  1200hrs – 1700hrs  
 3rd May 2014  1400hrs – 0200hrs 
 4th May 2014  1000hrs – 1500hrs 
  
The times of the industrial action are viewed as particularly disappointing by 
the Authority given the obvious impact on those staff that are not members of 
the FBU and are providing cover. Whilst it is recognised that Merseyside FBU 
members have very little influence over the times and dates of industrial 
action, the forthcoming episodes are at the very limit of what the Authority will 
tolerate before refusing to accept partial performance of shift.  
  
The Authority is, after carefully considering the options available and in light of 
the on-going constructive dialogue with the representative bodies, prepared 
on this occasion to accept partial performance of shift. However, any future 
periods of industrial action will be considered on their merits and may result in 
a refusal by the Authority to accept partial performance of shift.  
  
 

Page 17



 
-2- 

 
 
 
For the avoidance of any doubt a refusal by the Authority to accept partial 
performance would result in an individual not being required to attend for a full 
shift where any part of that shift is subject to industrial action.   
 
The Authority recognises that this is a National dispute between the 
Government and the FBU. The Authority however has no influence over these 
negotiations and must continue to protect our communities during industrial 
action, whilst safeguarding the wellbeing of those staff who continue to work.   
  
I am sure you will appreciate the reasons for this correspondence, and 
understand the actions to be taken by the Authority in managing the local 
impacts of this national dispute. 
 
Yours sincerely   
 
 

 
 

 

 

JANET HENSHAW 
CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY 

DAVE HANRATTY 
CHAIR OF THE AUTHORITY 

 
 
        
    

This image cannot currently be displayed.

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Industrial Action Cover Arrangements
	Appendix A: Industrial Action Cover Arrangements
	Appendix A1: Industrial Action Cover Arrangements
	Appendix A2: Industrial Action Cover Arrangements


